

Public Health Advisory Board (PHAB)
Incentives and Funding Subcommittee meeting minutes
April 9, 2019
1:00 p.m. - 2:00 p.m.

PHAB members present: Carrie Brogoitti, Dr. Jeff Luck, Alejandro Queral, Akiko Saito, Dr. Bob

Dannenhoffer

PHAB members absent: None

Oregon Health Authority (OHA) staff: Sara Beaudrault, Katarina Moseley, Danna Drum, Krasimir

Karamfilov

Welcome, introductions, and updates

Ms. Beaudrault introduced the meeting and thanked everybody for joining. She apologized for not having the meeting materials posted online and assured the subcommittee that the materials would be posted as soon as possible after the meeting.

Ms. Saito introduced herself and invited meeting attendees and the subcommittee members on the phone to introduce themselves.

A quorum was present. Ms. Saito asked the subcommittee members to review the meeting minutes from March 12, 2019, before the subcommittee approved the minutes.

Ms. Saito asked if the subcommittee would entertain a motion to approve the meeting minutes. Dr. Dannenhoffer made a motion to approve the meeting minutes. Dr. Luck seconded the motion. The subcommittee approved the meeting minutes unanimously.

Dr. Dannenhoffer expressed appreciation for the quick preparation and distribution of the meeting minutes. Ms. Saito agreed with Dr. Dannenhoffer and added that the meeting minutes were detailed.

<u>LPHA funding between \$5-10 million – planning scenario</u>

Ms. Beaudrault followed up on the work the subcommittee did during its last meeting to formalize the recommendations for use of the \$5 million in funding, with \$3.9 million going to LPHAs, if we have the same level of funding in the next biennium. Because of the work the subcommittee did, OHA has been able to put plans in place to ensure that funds go out to the eight LPHA partnerships that are funded now in July and not go through a RFP process. There should be very little or no interruption in funding out to those groups. OHA will continue to provide updates.

Dr. Dannenhoffer pointed out that because the funding is spread over 24 months rather than over 19 months, it is a monthly decrease of \$5,000/\$6,000 per month for the plans, which would most likely result in reductions of personnel in most of the programs.



Ms. Saito asked Ms. Beaudrault is she had heard from any of the partnerships whether that was a concern.

Ms. Beaudrault remarked that LPHAs have expressed that concern through the Conference of Local Health Officials (CLHO). Some of the partnerships can absorb the reduction in funding more easily because they had spent funds on up-front costs that they would not necessarily need in the next biennium. For other partnerships, it is not how they used their funding, so it is a real impact.

Ms. Beaudrault guided the subcommittee members to page 11 of the packet, displaying the funding pyramid and funding levels. Until now, the subcommittee has been talking about the very top of the pyramid, up to \$5 million in funding to local public health authorities (LPHA)s. Today the subcommittee will take it down to the next tier, between \$5 and \$10 million in funding to LPHAs. This is just planning for if OHA ends up with additional General Fund investment at the end of Legislative Session. Funding to LPHAs is a portion of total funding for public health modernization.

Ms. Beaudrault called the subcommittee's attention to page 10 of the packet, listing the funding priorities that the Public Health Advisory Board (PHAB) developed in 2018. She emphasized the first four priorities as being relevant to the discussion:

- (a) Ensure that public health services are available to every person in Oregon, whether they are provided by an individual local public health authority, through cross-jurisdictional sharing arrangements, and/or by the Oregon Health Authority.
- (b) Align funding with burden of disease, risk, and state and community health assessment and plan priorities, while minimizing the impact to public health infrastructure when resources are redirected.
- (c) Use funding to advance health equity in Oregon, which may include directing funds to areas of the state experiencing a disproportionate burden of disease or where health disparities exist.
- (d) Use funding to incentivize changes to the public health system intended to increase efficiency and improve health outcomes, which may include cross-jurisdictional sharing.

Ms. Beaudrault noted that the text on the pyramid for funding between \$5-\$10 million was vetted by the Conference of Local Health Officials (CLHO) last year and states that if LPHAs are to receive between \$5 and \$10 million, then all LPHAs would receive floor funding through the base component of the local public health funding formula. This is the part of the funding formula that gives all counties some funds to work with, based on their county size. The base funds range from \$30,000 for the extra small counties up to \$90,000 for the extra large counties. The remainder of funds would be distributed through grants to LPHA projects or partnerships. The text says that it would be connected with the partnerships that were established with current funding, but there is some flexibility to how PHAB would recommend those additional funds are used.

Ms. Beaudrault added that, looking at it a different way, if there were between \$5-\$10 million for LPHAs, this is how the funding would break down: (a) The eight LPHA partnerships that are funded now would receive \$3.9 million, (b) The base funding to each LPHA totals to \$1.845 million, (c) Remainder funds that could be available. Different ideas have been voiced about how the remainder funds could be used, both in this subcommittee and in CLHO conversations. Possible



funding avenues include: (a) additional funding to LPHA partnerships, (b) new partnerships that did not meet the criteria for currently-funded LPHA partnerships (e.g., a county that wants to form a partnership with a tribe, or a CCO, or a different entity, but not with other LPHAs), (c) cross-jurisdictional service delivery models (e.g., Washington state's new service delivery models, where one county plays a role of providing foundational public health services for other counties). Other ideas might be directly related to the funding principles.

Ms. Saito commented that one of the things to consider, based on Dr. Dannenhoffer's remark about the potential decrease of funding to the partnerships, is whether the first part of the funds over \$5 million could be used to make those partnerships whole, so that the funding is there for the 24 months, and then decide on the remainder funds to do base funding, and so on. The idea was to put the money in these pilot projects, so that they could really show us what could be done and be a model project for everything else.

Dr. Luck asked how much it would cost to fully bring the partnerships back up to the same monthly level.

Dr. Dannenhoffer answered that it could cost about \$1.2 million.

Ms. Saito asked the subcommittee members if they had thoughts on bringing the partnerships whole first and then deciding on the remainder of the funds.

Dr. Dannenhoffer noted that, speaking as somebody from Douglas County who is the fiduciary for one of the projects, this would be his choice, although he is conflicted. The disadvantage of all this is that public health people come on to do projects and having to be uncertain about their continued employment is really, really a negative. It is such a stressor to the programs, when the two people who work on this program don't know if they are going to have jobs starting in July. That is enormously stressful.

Ms. Brogoitti remarked that even before Ms. Saito asked the question, her initial reaction was that we probably should look at using some of these funds to fill in the gaps that the partnerships will be experiencing over the next year, given the change in the funding period and the change in the number of partnerships that are getting funded. The other piece of that is thinking about how we can use those partnerships to continue expanding upon the work they are doing now. Are there natural jumping-off points to expand the scope of the capabilities and priorities we are focusing on, given the infrastructure that we have already established?

Ms. Brogoitti stated that she also would want to put value on creating space for new partnerships and new opportunities. One of her concerns that she has had all along, and continues to have, is that we would continue funding the same partnerships and that would not give us space to open it up to new things. She would like to hold both, if that is possible.

Dr. Luck agreed with Ms. Brogoitti and Dr. Dannenhoffer that bringing the existing partnerships back up to their current funding level was a good place to start.



Mr. Queral seconded Dr. Luck's remarks, pointing out that Dr. Dannenhoffer and Ms. Brogoitti had a much better sense of what was needed, and it was consistent with what the subcommittee had discussed in the past.

Ms. Saito summarized the discussion by noting that the subcommittee is suggesting that before we do the remainder of the funds, we would bring the existing partnerships up to full capacity. From there on, we would do the base funding. Then we still need to decide on, if we have even more money, which is a good problem to have, the three suggested choices or some other choices the subcommittee members might propose.

Ms. Beaudrault clarified the math, using Dr. Dannenhoffer's number of needing an additional \$1.2 million to bring the LPHA partnerships whole. That would be just over \$5 million, plus the \$1.845 million in base bunding. That takes us up to about \$7 million dollars, earmarked to go to LPHAs. We are now talking about remaining funds, above the \$7 million. The options listed under remaining funds do not necessarily need to be mutually exclusive. It is likely that OHA would need to do an RFP for these options, so it is clear where we open things up to new models, new partnerships, new opportunities to do things differently, as Ms. Brogoitti mentioned.

Ms. Moseley asked if the pyramid is the LPHA allocation of what we would assume would be more funding.

Ms. Beaudrault answered that that was correct. The pyramid shows funding to LPHAs within a broader funding level.

Ms. Saito reiterated that the funding between \$5-\$10 million would be utilized for the LPHA partnerships to bring them whole, which would be an additional \$1.2 million. Then we would take base funding to LPHAs, which ranges from 30K to 90K. The remainder of up to \$10 million would be about \$3 million, which would be done in an RFP process, which would include all potential options.

Ms. Mosely pointed out that, considering the math related to the \$5-\$10 million range, if the funding is below \$7 million, that is not achievable.

Ms. Saito remarked that if the funding is at \$7 million, we would not have the remainder RFP process. If it is at \$5 million, we would have the LPHA partnerships becoming whole.

Dr. Dannenhoffer liked this proposal.

Dr. Luck asked if the proposal was for the first \$7 million or for the last \$3 million.

Ms. Saito answered that the proposal is for the total \$10 million, while Ms. Moseley's question concerned funding of \$7 million or less. At \$7 million, we would bring the current LPHA partnerships to a holistic number, and then using the base funding to the LPHAs in the range from 30K to 90K. We would not be doing the extra \$3 million RFP process.

Mr. Queral agreed that the proposal made sense.

Ms. Saito added that with funding at just \$5 million, we would just be funding the LPHA partnerships as a holistic number.



Dr. Luck agreed with the proposal.

Ms. Saito stated that the subcommittee members were in agreement on how funds would be allocated to LPHAs if somewhere between \$5-10 million is allocated to LPHAs. Funds would be used in this order:

- 1. Increase funding to the eight LPHA partnerships so that the funding level matches current funding for a full 24-month period (approximately \$5.1 million).
- 2. Provide base funding to all LPHAs (\$1.845 million)
- 3. Any remaining funds distributed through RFP for new partnerships, CJS service delivery models, or additional funding for existing LPHA partnerships.

Ms. Beaudrault called the subcommittee's attention to page 13 of the meeting packet, showing the purpose and goals of funding in the three different buckets. For the LPHA partnerships, the purpose of funding is the creation of regional systems for communicable disease control and elimination of health disparities. Another thing these partnerships are achieving is setting in place new infrastructure that was not there before; sustainable infrastructure built around policies that are in place, and shared staffing. We are hoping to get feedback on the purpose of providing base funding to each LPHA, which would help us craft our planning work. Some ideas include (a) increase local capacity to improve accountability metrics for the communicable disease process measures (i.e., improving two-year-old immunization rates, decreasing rates of gonorrhea), (b) implement local components of health equity action plan, and (c) increase local capacity to participate more fully in the regional partnership, which could include contributing some local funds to the broader partnership.

Ms. Beaudrault added that the remaining funds would likely go out through an RFP. Some ideas for the purpose and goals of that money include (a) address gaps in modernization assessment, (b) increase capacity for foundational capability, (c) consider projects or proposals that would have the largest impact on population, (d) address some of the other funding priorities, such as using funding to address health equity or targeting it to areas that have higher burden of disease, (e) prioritize proposals that focus on specific communicable diseases or that address some of the gaps around assessment and epidemiology, such as creating new ways of reporting and making disease data available to communities.

Ms. Beaudrault remarked that it would be helpful if the subcommittee members shared any initial thought they might have around these purposes, or what they would want to see OHA driving toward with funding in each of the three buckets. The feedback would be helpful for planning the requirements OHA would be putting in place around the different buckets of funding.

Dr. Dannenhoffer noted that if we were going to do an RFP, one of the deliverables has to be a toolkit or something that others could use. For example, let's say that there was a project to improve the use of social media to help fight our current battle with gonorrhea. Let's say Multnomah County got that grant, the outcome should be that they teach the rest of the counties how to go ahead and do that.



Dr. Dannenhoffer added that one of the concerns he had from the current project was that stuff that was learned in the other seven areas (i.e., partnerships) would ever be presented to the rest of the partnerships in a way that they could use it. That would be incredible useful for everybody.

Ms. Beaudrault endorsed Dr. Dannenhoffer's suggestion, in terms of being clear that we are not looking at these as one-off projects, but as potentially effective models that can be replicated across the state.

Dr. Luck liked that as criteria. We identified communicable disease, assessment and epidemiology, emergency preparedness, and health equity as priorities above other capabilities and programs, but within that group, we didn't identify any relative priorities. Thinking about broader applicability beyond the boundaries of the initial grant might be a way to help choose within that set.

Ms. Saito shared her liking of the idea of a learning network, with the partnerships having an opportunity to share learning, even if somebody came up with a curriculum like *Train the Trainer*, or something similar that will enable the partnerships to share information across the state. This could be a potential deliverable for both the base funding and the remaining funds.

Mr. Queral asked what this RFP would look like. If it is base funding for all LPHAs, we should be thinking about the most fundamentally basic RFP approach. The criteria should not necessarily be about which is the best project, but, in the spirit of what Dr. Dannenhoffer suggested, what it is that you can bring to the rest of public health across the state. That may be one element of what's in it. In essence, we are saying that we are going to provide some funds towards your base funding on this, and the RFP is giving the health authority an opportunity to articulate what's going to happen with those dollars. Billing it as an RFP makes it sound as if it is competitive, in a sense of competing against each other, or competing to be the best project, as opposed to getting the money for what would be a foundational component of something that they are intending to do in the context of modernization.

Ms. Saito clarified that the base funding for each LPHA (i.e., \$1.845 million) would not be an RFP. That money would just go out based on what we had agreed upon, which was 30K for extra small counties and up to 90K for the larger counties. The RFP process would only be on those remaining funds, which, at this point, we are only looking at between \$0-\$3 million.

Ms. Saito asked the subcommittee if everyone was in agreement with the generalized approach to the base funding and the suggested options.

Ms. Beaudrault reiterated that the options are not mutually exclusive. We could put something in place so that a LPHA could choose to work on any of the options. There might be other things that we are not thinking of yet, but it would be helpful to hear if the subcommittee thinks any of these are more or less important, and if there are any that you really want to see us emphasizing.

Ms. Saito stated that she liked the option *Implement health equity action plan* as a potential priority. It is one of the foundational capabilities and it is also important to lead with health equity. It seems that that could be done with smaller amount of funds.



Ms. Moseley wondered why that would not be in the \$3.9 million tier.

Ms. Beaudrault confirmed that it was. With the \$3.9 million, the next phase for the eight funded partnerships is that they will be focusing on implementing those plans. This would give each LPHA some funds to do some specific and targeted work in their own county that might not happen through the broader partnership. It is just driving to more money, more focus.

Dr. Luck commented that these are good guidelines, but with the relatively small amount of money, we should not be too restrictive, but rather let the different health departments decide how they want to spend that money within these goals of communicable disease, health equity, and partnership participation.

Mr. Queral agreed with Dr. Luck and remarked that we need to be clear and specific about what we mean by each of these options, considering that it is a limited amount of money. In terms of communicable diseases, we can certainly provide some guidance that would facilitate that. In other words, it would be helpful if there are ways in which the OHA can support the LPHAs. In terms of the health equity action plan, considering the amount of money that these grants would carry, it seems that it would be useful to have the health departments outline the priorities within that plan. Expecting them to be able to implement a full plan that includes outreach in partnership development with other organizations and providers may be a bit difficult. There should be enough flexibility for prioritizing and doing those priorities well, as supposed to trying to implement a full plan.

Ms. Beaudrault remarked that it is a similar question for the remaining funds. We have talked about a few different things: increasing capacity for foundational capabilities in any of the work; making sure that it is scalable; thinking back to the funding principles and looking for proposals that build on assessment and epidemiology capacity, or focused on specific areas with burden of disease, or focused on interventions around improving health equity. These are some different options for what we would be trying to achieve with that remaining bucket of funding, if it were to become available.

Ms. Beaudrault asked the subcommittee members if anything in particular resonated for them, or if there was anything that seems less important, or anything that they wanted OHA to be prioritizing as the subcommittee thought through this.

Ms. Saito noted that it would be nice to keep it open, as there was not a lot of money in the remaining funds. It seems that the subcommittee is talking about with those remaining funds to have some kind of a deliverable around what could be used for other partners to do. It builds the learning network piece of it.

Ms. Saito asked the subcommittee members if they were fine with what was written in the additional piece around the deliverables that are resource-oriented.

Dr. Luck remarked that that generally sounded fine to him.

<u>Subcommittee business</u>



Ms. Saito stated that she would provide a subcommittee update at the PHAB meeting on April 18, 2019. She asked Ms. Brogoitti if she would be available to chair the May 14, 2019, subcommittee meeting.

Ms. Brogoitti remarked that she may not be available.

Ms. Beaudrault mentioned that the chairs have gone in alphabetical order and we can skip ahead and see if Dr. Dannenhoffer would be willing to chair the meeting in May.

Ms. Brogoitti thanked for the accommodation.

Ms. Saito noted that in the spirit of Mr. Queral chairing two meetings in a row, if Dr. Dannenhoffer can't chair the meeting, Ms. Saito would be happy to chair another meeting.

Ms. Beaudrault added that, in terms of the agenda for next month, usually Dr. Dannenhoffer or Ms. Brogoitti provides an update from the subcommittee to CLHO and sometimes has additional feedback to bring back. We will have an opportunity to bring back to the subcommittee any additional feedback from CLHO on what we have been talking about today, before we finalize the recommendations at that funding level. Also next month, Danna Drum will be here to talk about fiscal year 2018 LPHA expenditures reporting. This connects to the subcommittee's work around coming up with a mechanism for awarding matching funds for when we get to that funding level. It is an opportunity to look at last year's expenditures reporting and then think about how that fits in with the model for matching funds.

Public comment

Ms. Saito invited members of the public to ask questions and provide comments.

There was no public comment.

Closing

Ms. Saito adjourned the meeting at 1:45 p.m.

The next Public Health Advisory Board Incentives and Funding subcommittee meeting will be held on May 14, 2019, at 1:00 p.m.